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Representation Letter

The entities that are required to be included in the combined financial statements of Bioteque Corporation as of
and for the year ended December 31, 2019 under the Criteria Governing the Preparation of Affiliation Reports,
Consolidated Business Reports, and Consolidated Financial Statements of Affiliated Enterprises are the same as
those included in the consolidated financial statements prepared in conformity with International Financial
Reporting Standards No. 10 endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission, "Consolidated Financial
Statements." In addition, the information required to be disclosed in the combined financial statements is
included in the consolidated financial statements. Consequently, Bioteque Corporation and Subsidiaries do not
prepare a separate set of combined financial statements.

Company name: Bioteque Corporation
Chairman: TSAI, CHUNG-LI
Date: March 11, 2020
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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Board of Directors of Bioteque Corporation:
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Bioteque Corporation and its subsidiaries (“the
Group™), which comprise the consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
consolidated financial position of the Group as of December 31, 2019 and 2018, and its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with the International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), International Accounting Standards (“IASs”™), Interpretations developed by the
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (“IFRIC”) or the former Standing Interpretations
Committee (“SIC”) endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of
China.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Certification of Financial
Statements by Certified Public Accountants and the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Certified Public Accountants Code of Professional Ethics in Republic of China (““the
Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis of our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not
provide a separate opinion on these matters.

1. Provision for impairment of accounts receivable

Please refer to Note 4(g) “Financial instruments™ for accounting policies, Note 5 for accounting assumptions,
judgments, and estimation uncertainty to the consolidated financial statements, and Note 6(d) for the
illustration of the impairment of accounts receivable.

KPMG, a Taiwan partnership and a member firm of the KPMG network of independent member
firms affiliated with KPMG International Cooperative (‘KPMG International’), a Swiss entity
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The Group engages in manufacturing and selling the medical device. As of December 31, 2019, the amount

of the accounts receivable is $218,958 thousand. The recovery ability of amounts due is concerned by the
Managements’ judgment. Consequently, the assessment of accounts receivable has been identified as a key
audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included: Obtaining the calculation of expected credit loss (ECL) on trade
receivable, and assessing the appropriateness of ECL; examining the aging of trade receivables to verify the
accuracy of the ageing period; assessing the appropriateness and adequacy of provision for doubtful accounts
made by the management based on the ECL.

2. Evaluation of inventories

Please refer to Note 4(h) “ inventories” for accounting policies, Note 5 for accounting assumptions,
judgments, and estimation uncertainty to the consolidated financial statements, and Note 6(e) for the
illustration of the evaluation of inventories.

The Group engage in manufacturing the medical device. As of December 31, 2019, the amount of the

inventories is $268,278 thousand. Since the loss on valuation of inventories and obsolescence is based on the
Managements’ judgment. Consequently, the valuation of inventory has been identified as a key audit matter.

How the matter was addressed in our audit

Our principal audit procedures included: Understanding the estimations of inventories at net realizable value
by referring to their original transaction documents to test their accuracy. Accessing the inventory aging
report and analyzing the aging of the inventories. Moreover, reviewing whether the valuation and the related
information of the inventories are disclosed appropriately.

Other Matter

Bioteque Corporation has prepared its parent-company-only financial statements as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, on which we have issued an unqualified opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and with
the IFRSs, IASs, IFRC, SIC endorsed and issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the
Republic of China, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance (including supervisors) are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of China, we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

1. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

2. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

3. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

4. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

5. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

6. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partners on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report are Ya-Ling Chen and Yen-
Ta Su.

KPMG

Taipei, Taiwan (Republic of China)
March 11, 2020

Notes to Readers

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are intended only to present the consolidated statement of financial position,
financial performance and cash flows in accordance with the accounting principles and practices generally accepted in the Republic of
China and not those of any other jurisdictions. The standards, procedures and practices to audit such consolidated financial statements are
those generally accepted and applied in the Republic of China.

The independent auditors’ audit report and the accompanying consolidated financial statements are the English translation of the Chinese
version prepared and used in the Republic of China. If there is any conflict between, or any difference in the interpretation of the English
and Chinese language independent auditors’ audit report and consolidated financial statements, the Chinese version shall prevail.



I

0T TPSILLT 00T S6¥0v6C
8 [20Vice S8 ITI'88¥C
T w60l = ILD
= QD - -

- 6STT - ILD
¥ TE6¥6C 1 05 0697181
1€ 69075001 € ISLLSTT
- 6519 - -
01  +0¥'€8T I €06°€TE
T0 89TSIE TT 89TSIE
ST €86°C69 YT €86°C69
1T SISLSw ST TLECsw
T I9871L T tetLR
T 36001 ~ 6

- g . -
- - - 6¥S01

T ITSIS € €09°L9

- ovTor - -
YT 8¥9°S8E U LL6P9¢
- 6109 - 7566

I ov8'se - LTool

- - - gE6

T 9L'19 T $69°€9

- Ip6'S - L1659

¥ 9LI%0I ¥ 80Tzl
€ 9§TSL € I¥h'99
T LOSLE T SWIv

I €6'ce I 60L9¢

I 000°sT - -
LA junowy DA unoury
8107 ‘1€ 19quddd( 6107 ‘L€ 12quIada(

£mba pue s3NIMIqe] [EI0L,

&ymboa 1ej01,

swooul aAIsusiaidwod 9o yInoiyy
aN[EA JIBY Je PAINSESUI S}OSSE [BIOURUY WO (SISSO[) Suled pazijeaiuf)
SJUSWIS}E)S [EIOURHL UFISIOf JO UOHR[SUEL) UO SIIUSIJJIP o5ueyoxy
gseraur Ambs YO

s3umures poureler pajerdorddeun)
oA10801 [e1oadg
3Alos0l [B39]

:s3uitiies powieloy

snjdins [eyde)

saleys AIeuIpiQ

{((u)g pue (3)9 sapou) Juded yo s1auso 03 AqeInqune Hmby

SapIIqeEl 1#10.L

IR} JUILIND-UOU [€)0 ],
((x)9 saj0u) JWALNO-UOU “AJ[IQRI] JJAUIQ PAuULyap N
SONI[I(EI] JUSLIND-UOU ISP
((n)g pue (1)9 s210U) SANI[IGRI] SSES] JUSLIND-UON
(D9 sar0u) sonIqel] Xe) pauged
(6 pue (n)g ‘(y)9 sejou) sfupmorioq uu}-Fuo|

89

.89

SOPIIQRI] JUILIND [BIO,

SONIIQRI] JUSLIND IR

((n)g pue ()9 sajou) uontod Jusimd ‘sayifiqer uus)-Suoy
(M9 pue (1)9 sejou) SANI[IqeI] S5EI] JUSLIND
SANIIqEI] XE) JuaLIn’y

yustudmbs pue Arsuryorw Uo s|qeied

((d) 9 pue ()9 sajow) sejqeked 1O

a1qeded sjunosoy

s1qeAed saj0N.

((0)9 sa10u) sapI[IGR]] JORJUOD JUSLIND

(g pue ()9 “(1))9 $910uU) STUIMOLIO] ULIS}-HOYS

:SOPIIQRI[ JULINY

Aymby pue sepiIqer]

§QBI[ JUALIND)-UON]

0Tve
0Tve

0S€E
0zee
01ee

00Z¢
001¢€

0p9T
009T
085T
0LST
V1494

66€C
[I[4%4
08¢T
0£CT
£1TC
60CC
oLlt
0s1¢
0ele
001T

00T THSILLT 001 86K 06T $
6  8YS080°L 8¢ 699711

T G56ES T IErL

- TUET - 9861

€ €6€°LL ¥ 9EEE0l

- LS9 - 60

- - T S9EPY

¥E  PEL'YYE T TBLEY6

- LET - -

19 7660691

79 6I8CIS]

T SILe T TES9C
- EP6l - €IS

0l  vEL'I8T 6 8LT'89T

8  8E£0°1IT 8  8$6'8ICT

€ 8€9°IL T pE8'89

9  §TE9Ll 9 8II'SLI

€€ 109°926 9€  96SHS0°L $

A junowry % junowry
8107 ‘1€ JPquIdddQ  GIOT ‘T JquIadaQg

(SIe[[O(] WeAIEY MIN JO SPUEBSNOY) Ul passdrdxa)
8107 PuE 6T0T ‘I JquBIQ
$)99Y§ ddUEB[E PIAJBPI[OSUOC))

SAVIAISANS ANV NOLLVIOJ¥0D FN0AL0Id

(asourg)) uy panss| A[euISiIO SHUAWI)L)S [EPUBUL] PINEPIIOSUO)) Jo uone[suel], ysiSuy)

*SJUSUISYE)S [EIOURTY PIIRPI[Osuod 0} sajou Suruedwoodse 0og

$)asse [e30],

$)OSSE JUILANI-UOU [£)0],
((D9 s10u) $)9SSE JUILIND-UOU JOYIO
S}OSSE [BIOUBULJ JULINO-UOH JSO
(6 e10U) SonI[IOR] SsaUISNq 10 syuswAedord
((1)9 a10u) s)955€ XE) POLIJO(]
((8)9 a10u) syosse asn-Jo-y3ry
(6 pue § ‘()9 sajou) juswdmbo pue juerd ‘Aurodorg
((9)9 s10u) swoour
sAIsusia1duros 19130 YInony anjeA ey )2 S}OSSe [RIOUBUL JUSLIND-UON

1§)3SSE JULIND-UON

$)ASSE JUILIND [B)O],
(D)o s10u) s19sSE JUSLING IO

(8 9j0U) 5}05SE [BIOUBULJ JUSLINO IOYIQ

((3)9 a10u) saUIOJUAUL

((0) pue (p)9g sorou) JU ‘9[qRAI0I SIUNOIIY

((0) pue (p)g saj0u) JoU D|qBAIG0AI SAJON

((q)9 s10u) ssoj 10 3301d yInony) anjea J1ey Je S)ISSE [BIOURUL JUALINYD)
((2)9 210u) sjusjeambe yseo pue yse)

:S)ISSE JUILIN))

s)assy

S661
0861
Ste6l
0¥81
SSLT
0091

LIS

6L¥1
9Lyl
XO0¢1
0LIT
0SIl
11081
0011



4000
5000

6000
6100
6200
6300

6900
7000
7010
7020
7050

7900
7951

8300
8310
8311
8316

8349

8360
8361
8399

8300

9750
9850

(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

BIOTEQUE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except for Earnings Per Common Share)

Operating revenue (notes 6(0))
Operating costs (notes 6(e), (f), (j), (k) and 12)
Gross profit from operations
Operating expenses (notes 6(f), (g), (k), (p), 7 and 12):
Selling expenses
Administrative expenses
Research and development expenses
Total operating expenses
Net operating income
Non-operating income and expenses (note 6(q)):
Other income
Other gains and losses
Finance costs
Total non-operating income and expenses
Profit before tax
Less: Tax expenses (note 6(1I))
Profit
Other comprehensive income (loss) (note 6(k)):
Components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to profit or loss:
Gains (losses) on remeasurements of defined benefit plans

Unrealized gains (losses) from investments in equity instruments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Total components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will not be reclassified to
profit or loss

Components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will be reclassified to profit or loss:

Exchange differences on translation

Income tax related to components of other comprehensive income that will be reclassified to profit

or loss

Total components of other comprehensive income (loss) that will be reclassified to profit
or loss

Other comprehensive income (loss), net
Comprehensive income
Profit, attributable to:
Profit, attributable to owners of parent
Comprehensive income, attributable to:
Comprehensive income, attributable to owners of parent
Basic earnings per share (note 6(n)) (Expressed in New Taiwan Dollars)

Diluted earnings per share (note 6(n)) (Expressed in New Taiwan Dollars)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

2019 2018

Amount % Amount %
$ 1,858,900 100 1,613,009 100
1,041,944 56 923,968 57
816,956 44 689,041 43
88,660 5 75,987 5
96,334 5 85,901 5
51,473 3 37,961 3
236,467 13 199,849 13
580,489 31 489,192 30
37,666 2 18,646 1
23,651y (1) 10,387 1

(1,934) - (2,957) -
12,081 1 26,076 2
592,570 32 515,268 32
128,398 7 110,271 7
464,172 25 404,997 25

1,120 - (2,605) -

(26) - [C2))] -

1,094 - (2,696 -
(13,973) (1) 17,494 1
(13,973) (1) 17,494 1
{12,879) [€))] 14,798 1
$ 451,293 24 419,795 26
S 464,172 25 404,997 25
S 451,293 24 419,795 26
S 6.70 5.84
$ 6.67 5.81
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(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

BIOTEQUE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

2019 2018
Cash flows generated from (used in) operating activities:
Profit before tax $ 592,570 515,268
Adjustments:
Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss):
Depreciation expense 93,337 81,595
Amortization expense 2,794 4,318
Net loss (gain) on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (1,602) 256
Interest expense 1,934 2,957
Interest income (5,966) (6,440)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 19,086 25
Total adjustments to reconcile profit 109,583 82,711
Changes in operating assets:
Notes receivable 2,804 3,085
Accounts receivable (7,920) (18,209)
Inventories 13,456 (84,142)
Other current assets (6,376) 1,385
Other financial assets 1,430 (508)
Total changes in operating assets 3,394 (98,389)
Changes in operating liabilities:
Current contract liabilities 2,786 33,923
Notes payable 3,608 (5,350)
Accounts payable (8,815) 21,451
Other payable 21,096 6,788
Net defined benefit liability 264 385
Other current liabilities 3,933 (21,181)
Total changes in operating liabilities 22,872 35,976
Total changes in operating assets and liabilities 26,266 (62,413)
Total adjustments 135,849 20,298
Cash inflow generated from operations 728,419 535,566
Interest received 6,795 5,946
Income taxes paid (111,803) (81,099)
Net cash flows generated from operating activities 623,411 460,413
Cash flows generated from (used in) investing activities:
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 211 -
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (124,062) (120,431)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 123,217 118,312
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment (82,665) (29,066)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment - 107
Decrease (increase) in other non-current financial assets 16 (192)
Increase in other non-current assets (6,374) (3,199)
Increase in prepayments for business facilities (56,730) (78,673)
Increase (decrease) in payables on machinery and equipment 656 (3,537
Net cash flows used in investing activities (145,731) (116,679)
Cash flows generated from (used in) financing activities:
Increase in short-term loans 165,280 25,000
Decrease in short-term loans (189,064) (80,000)
Repayments of long-term borrowings (36,062) (37,715)
Decrease in guarantee deposits 8) -
Payment of lease liabilities (4,880) -
Cash dividend paid (277,193) (242,544)
Interest paid (1,937) (3,128)
Net cash flows used in financing activities (343,864) (338,387)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents (5.821) 4,400
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 127,995 9,747
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 926,601 916,854
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 1,054,596 926,601

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



(English Translation of Consolidated Financial Statements Originally Issued in Chinese)

BIOTEQUE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018

(Expressed in thousands of New Taiwan Dollars unless otherwise specified)

(1) Company history

Bioteque Corporation (“‘the Company”) was incorporation in November, 1991 in accordance with The

Company Act and the other related laws and regulations.

The Company’s stock was listed on Taipei Exchange on March 4, 2002.

The business operation of the Company and its subsidiaries (together referred to as “the Group™) are as

follows:

(a) Manufacturing, trading and selling of the medical equipment and instruments.

(b) Reinvestment and monopoly investment in securities business.
Please refer to note 14 for the related information.

(2) Approval date and procedures of the consolidated financial statements:

These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue by the board of directors on March 11,

2020.

(3) New standards, amendments and interpretations adopted:

(a) The impact of the International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) endorsed by the Financial

Supervisory Commission, R.O.C. (“FSC”) which have already been adopted.

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and

are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019.

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations

Effective date
per JASB

IFRS 16 “Leases”

IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments”

Amendments to IFRS 9 “Prepayment features with negative compensation”
Amendments to IAS 19 “Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement”
Amendments to IAS 28 “Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures”
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle

January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2019

(Continued)
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Except for the following items, the Group believes that the adoption of the above IFRSs would not
have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements. The extent and impact of
signification changes are as follows:

@

IFRS 16“Leases”

IFRS 16 replaces the existing leases guidance, including TAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining
whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases — Incentives and SIC-27
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal Form of a Lease.

The Group applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach. The details of the
changes in accounting policies are disclosed below:

1)

2)

Definition of a lease

Previously, the Group determined at contract inception whether an arrangement is or
contains a lease under IFRIC 4. Under IFRS 16, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition of a lease, as explained in Note 4().

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group elected to apply the practical expedient to
grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. The Group applied IFRS 16
only to contracts that were previously identified as leases. Contracts that were not
identified as leases under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4 were not reassessed for whether there is a
lease. Therefore, the definition of a lease under IFRS 16 was applied only to contracts
entered into or changed on or after January 1, 2019.

As a lessee

As a lessee, the Group previously classified leases as operating or finance leases based
on its assessment of whether the lease transferred significantly all of the risks and
rewards incidental to ownership of the underlying asset to the Group. Under IFRS 16, the
Group recognizes right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for most leases — i.e. these
leases are on-balance sheet.

e  Leases classified as operating leases under IAS 17

At transition, lease liabilities were measured at the present value of the remaining
lease payments, discounted at the Group’s incremental borrowing rate as at January
1, 2019. Right-of-use assets are measured at an amount equal to the lease liability,
adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments — the Group
applied this approach to all other lease.

In addition, the Group used the following practical expedients when applying IFRS
16 to leases.

— Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with similar
characteristics.

(Continued)
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—  Adjusted the right-of-use assets by the amount of IAS 37 onerous contract
provision immediately before the date of initial application, as an alternative
to an impairment review.

—  Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for
leases with less than 12 months of lease term.

—  Excluded initial direct costs from measuring the right-of-use asset at the date
of initial application.

— Used hindsight when determining the lease term if the contract contains
options to extend or terminate the lease.

3) Impacts on financial statements

On transition to IFRS 16, the Group recognized additional $71,080 thousands of right-of-
use assets and $20,352 thousands of lease liabilities, recognising the difference from
other non-current and current assets. When measuring lease liabilities, the Group
discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at January 1, 2019. The
weighted-average rate applied is 1.02%.

The explanation of differences between operating lease commitments disclosed at the
end of the annual reporting period immediately preceding the date of initial application,
and lease liabilities recognized in the statement of financial position at the date of initial
application disclosed as follows:

January 1, 2019

Operating lease commitment at December 31, 2018 $ 6,337
Extension and termination options reasonably certain to be exercised 14,420
Discounted Interest expense (405)
Lease liabilities recognized at January 1, 2019 $ 20,352

(b) The impact of TFRS endorsed by FSC but not yet effective

The following new standards, interpretations and amendments have been endorsed by the FSC and
are effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2020 in accordance with Ruling No.
1080323028 issued by the FSC on July 29, 2019:

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 3 “Definition of a Business” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IFRS 9, TAS39 and IFRS7 “Interest Rate Benchmark Reform” January 1, 2020
Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8 “Definition of Material” January 1, 2020

The Group assesses that the adoption of the abovementioned standards would not have any material
impact on its consolidated financial statements.

(Continued)



(©)

12

BIOTEQUE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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The impact of IFRS issued by TASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

As of the date, the following IFRSs that have been issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB), but have yet to be endorsed by the FSC:

Effective date

New, Revised or Amended Standards and Interpretations per IASB
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of Assets Between Effective date to
an Investor and Its Associate or Joint Venture” be determined

by [ASB
IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” January 1, 2021

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current”  January 1, 2022

The Group is evaluating the impact of its initial adoption of the abovementioned standards or
interpretations on its consolidated financial position and consolidated financial performance. The
results thereof will be disclosed when the Group completes its evaluation.

(4) Summary of significant accounting policies:

The significant accounting policies presented in the consolidated financial statements are summarized
below. Except for those specifically indicated, the following accounting policies were applied consistently
throughout the periods presented in the consolidated financial statements.

()

(b)

Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Regulations
Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers (hereinafter referred to as “the
Regulations” ) and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations endorsed and issued into effect by the
Financial Supervisory Commission, R.O.C..

Basis of preparation
(i) Basis of measurement

Except for the following significant accounts, the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis;

1)  Financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are measured at fair value;

2) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are measured at fair
value;

3) The defined benefit liabilities are measured at fair value of the plan assets less the
present value of the defined benefit obligation.

(Continued)
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BIOTEQUE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of each Group entity is determined based on the primary economic
environment in which the entity operates. The consolidated financial statements are presented
in New Taiwan dollars, which is the Company’s functional currency. All financial information
presented in New Taiwan dollars has been rounded to the nearest thousand.

(¢) Basis of consolidation

(1)

(i)

Principles of preparation of the consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements comprise the Company and subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are
entities controlled by the Group. The Group’s controls' an entity when it its exposed to, or has
rights to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.

The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements
from the date on which control commences until the date on which control ceases. Intragroup
balances and transactions, and any unrealized income and expenses arising from Intragroup
transactions are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial statements.

The Group prepares consolidated financial statements using uniform accounting policies for
like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. Changes in the Group’s ownership
interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions.

List of subsidiaries in the consolidated financial statements:

Shareholding
December 31, December 31,

Name of investor Name of subsidiary Principal activity 2019 2018
The Company BIOTEQUE MEDICAL CO., LTD. Investment activities 100.00 % 100.00 %
The Company CHUNGTEX INVESTMENT CO., LTD Investment activities 100.00 % 100.00 %
The Company BIOTEQUE MEDICAL PHIL. INC. Manufacturing and 100.00 % 100.00 %
Trading of Medical
equipment
BIOTEQUE MEDICAL BONTEQ MEDICAL DISTRIBUTION  Trading of Medical 100.00 % 100.00 %
PHIL. INC. PHIL. INC. equipment

(iii) List of subsidiaries which are not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.

(Continued)
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(d) Foreign currency

@

(i)

Foreign currency transaction

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the respective functional currencies of
Group entities at the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each
subsequent reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are translated
into the functional currencies using the exchange rate at that date. Non-monetary items
denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are translated into the
functional currencies using the exchange rate at the date that the fair value was determined.
Non-monetary items denominated in foreign currencies that are measured based on historical
cost are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences are generally recognized in profit or loss, except for those differences
relating to the following, which are recognized in other comprehensive income:

1) an investment in equity securities designated as at fair value through other
comprehensive income;

2)  a financial liability designated as a hedge of the net investment in a foreign operation to
the extent that the hedge is effective; or

3) qualifying cash flow hedges to the extent that the hedges are effective.
Foreign operations

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments
arising on acquisition, are translated into the presentation currency at the exchange rates at the
reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into the
presentation currency at the average exchange rate. Exchange differences are recognized in
other comprehensive income.

When a foreign operation is disposed of such that control, significant influence, or joint
control is lost, the cumulative amount in the translation reserve related to that foreign operation
is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes
of only part of its interest in a subsidiary that includes a foreign operation while retaining
control, the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reattributed to non-controlling
interests. When the Group disposes of only part of its investment in an associate or joint
venture that includes a foreign operation while retaining significant influence or joint control,
the relevant proportion of the cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss.

When the settlement of a monetary receivable from or payable to a foreign operation is neither
planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future. Exchange differences arising from such a
monetary item that are considered to form part of the net investment in the foreign operation
are recognized in other comprehensive income.

(Continued)
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BIOTEQUE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Classification of current and non-current assets and liabilities

An asset is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other assets are classified
as non-current.

An entity shall classify an asset as current when:

(1) Ttisexpected to be realized, or intended to be sold or consumed, in the normal operating cycle;
(ii) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(iii) It is expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The asset is cash or a cash equivalent (as defined in IAS 7) unless the asset is restricted from
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
period.

A liability is classified as current under one of the following criteria, and all other liabilities are
classified as noncurrent.

An entity shall classify a liability as current when:

(i) Itisexpected to be settled in the normal operating cycle;

(i1) It is held primarily for the purpose of trading;

(i) It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or

(iv) The Group does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its secttlement by issuing equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash comprises of cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are short-term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an
insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits, which meet the above definition and are held
for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or other
purposes should be recognized as cash equivalents.

Financial instruments

Trade receivables and debt securities issued are initially recognized when they are originated. All
other financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized when the Group becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument. A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable
without a significant financing component) or financial liability is initially measured at fair value
plus, for an item not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component
is initially measured at the transaction price.

(Continued)
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Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are recognized and derecognized on a
trade date basis.

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortized cost; Fair value
through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) — equity investment; or FVTPL. Financial
assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Group changes its
business model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are
reclassified on the first day of the first reporting period following the change in the business
model.

1

2)

Financial assets measured at amortized cost

A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if it meets both of the following
conditions and is not designated as at FVTPL:

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

These assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost, which is the amount at which
the financial asset is measured at initial recognition, plus/minus, the cumulative
amortization using the effective interest method, adjusted for any loss allowance. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses, as well as impairment, are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognized in profit or loss.

Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI )

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in other
comprehensive income. This election is made on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

Equity investments at FVOCI are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are
recognized as income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of
part of the cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognized in other
comprehensive income and are never reclassified to profit or loss.

Dividend income is recognized in profit or loss on the date on which the Group’s right to
receive payment is established.

(Continued)
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Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

All financial assets not classified as amortized cost or FVOCI described as above are
measured at FVTPL, including derivative financial assets. Trade receivables that the
Group intends to sell immediately or in the near term are measured at FVTPL; however,
they are included in the ‘trade receivables’ line item. On initial recognition, the Group
may irrevocably designate a financial asset, which meets the requirements to be
measured at amortized cost or at FVOCI, as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any
interest or dividend income, are recognized in profit or loss.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is
evaluated on a fair value basis are measured at FVTPL.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognizes loss allowances for expected credit losses (ECL) on financial
assets measured at amortized cost (including cash and cash equivalents, amortized costs,
notes and trade receivables, other receivable, guarantee deposit paid and other financial
assets), debt investments measured at FVOCI and contract assets.

The Group measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECL, except for the
following which are measured as 12-month ECL:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date; and

other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk of default
occurring over the expected life of the financial instrument) has not increased
significantly since initial recognition. '

Loss allowance for trade receivables and contract assets are always measured at an
amount equal to lifetime ECL.

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly
since initial recognition and when estimating ECL, the Group considers reasonable and
supportable information that is relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This
includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on the Group’s
historical experience and informed credit assessment as well as forward-looking
information.

The Group considers a debt security to have low credit risk when its credit risk rating is
equivalent to the globally understood definition of ‘investment grade which is considered
to be BBB- or higher per Standard & Poor’s, Baa3 or higher per Moody’s or twA or
higher per Taiwan Ratings’.

The Group assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if
it is more than 30 days past due.

(Continued)
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The Group considers a financial asset to be in default when the financial asset is more
than 180 days past due.

Lifetime ECL are the ECL that result from all possible default events over the expected
life of a financial instrument.

12-month ECL are the portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible
within the 12 month after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the
instrument is less than 12 months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECL is the maximum contractual
period over which the Group is exposed to credit risk.

ECL are a probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as
the present value of all cash shortfalls (i.e the difference between the cash flows due to
the Group in accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive). ECL are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial asset.

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether financial assets carried at amortized
cost and debt securities at FVOCI are credit-impaired. A financial asset is
‘ credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a financial
assets is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;

the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the
borrower's financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization;
or

the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the
gross carrying amount of the assets. For debt securities at FVOCI, the loss allowance is
charge to profit or loss and is recognized in other comprehensive income instead of
reducing the carrying amount of the asset.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no
reasonable expectations of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof.
For corporate customers, the Group individually makes an assessment with respect to the
timing and amount of write-off based on whether there is a reasonable expectation of
recovery. The Group expects no significant recovery from the amount written off.
However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement
activities in order to comply with the Group’s procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(Continued)
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Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows
from the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash
tflows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred or in which the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of
the financial asset.

The Group enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognized in its statement
of balance sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the
transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred assets are not derecognized.

(il) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

1)

2)

3)

Classification of debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified as financial liabilities or
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the
definitions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instrument

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued are recognized as the
amount of consideration received, less the direct cost of issuing.

Compound financial instruments

Compound financial instruments issued by the Group comprise convertible bonds
denominated in NTD that can be converted to ordinary shares at the option of the holder,
when the number of shares to be issued is fixed and does not vary with changes in fair
value.

The liability component of compound financial instruments is initially recognized at the
fair value of a similar liability that does not have an equity conversion option. The equity
component is initially recognized at the difference between the fair value of the
compound financial instrument as a whole and the fair value of the liability component.
Any directly attributable transaction costs are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion to their initial carrying amounts.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the liability component of a compound financial
instrument is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The equity
component of a compound financial instrument is not remeasured.

Interest related to the financial liability is recognized in profit or loss. On conversion at
maturity, the financial liability is reclassified to equity and no gain or loss is recognized.

(Continued)
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Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognized in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognizes a financial liability when its contractual obligations are
discharged or cancelled, or expire. The Group also derecognizes a financial liability
when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are substantially
different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is
recognized at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount of a
financial liability extinguished and the consideration paid (including any non-cash assets
transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognized in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the
statement of balance sheet when, and only when, the Group currently has a legally
enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to settle them on a net basis
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net realizable value. The cost of inventories is
calculated using the weighted average method, and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring the
inventories, production or conversion costs, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
present location and condition. In the case of manufactured inventories and work in progress, cost
includes an appropriate share of production overheads based on normal operating capacity.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the
estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Property, plant and equipment

®

Recognition and measurement

Items of property, plant and equipment are measured at cost, which includes capitalized
borrowing costs, less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses.

If significant parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they

are accounted for as separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment.

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognized in profit
or loss.

(Continued)
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Subsequent expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow to the Group.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on the cost of an asset less its residual value and is recognized in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of each component of an
item of property, plant and equipment.

Land is not depreciated.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment for current and comparative
periods are as follows:

1)  Building and structures 5~50 years
2)  Machinery and equipment 2~15 years
3)  Transportation equipment 5~10 years
4)  Office equipment 2~5 years

5)  Other equipment 2~10 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives, and residual values are reviewed at each reporting date and
adjusted if appropriate.

(j) Leases

Applicable from January 1, 2019

@

Identifying a lease

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. A
contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset, the Group assesses whether:

— the contract involves the use of an identified asset — this may be specified explicitly or
implicitly, and should be physically distinct or represent substantially all of the capacity of a
physically distinct asset. If the supplier has a substantive substitution right, then the asset is
not identified; and

— the Group has the right to obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the
asset throughout the period of use; and

(Continued)
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— the Group has the right to direct the use of the asset throughout the period of use only if
either:

1) the Group has the right to direct how and for what purpose the asset is used throughout
the period of use; or

2) the relevant decisions about how and for what purpose the asset is used are
predetermined and:

—the Group has the right to operate the asset throughout the period of use, without the
supplier having the right to change those operating instructions; or

— the Group designed the asset in a way that predetermines how and for what purpose
it will be used throughout the period of use.

As a leasee

The Group recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date.
The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the
underlying asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any
lease incentives received.

The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from the
commencement date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the
end of the lease term. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment
losses, if any, and adjusted for certain remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if
that rate cannot be reliably determined, the Group’s incremental borrowing rate. Generally, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability comprise the following:
—fixed payments, including in-substance fixed payments;

— variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, initially measured using the index
or rate as at the commencement date;

—amounts expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee; and
— payments for purchase or termination options that are reasonably certain to be exercised.

The lease liability is measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. It is
remeasured when:

—there is a change in future lease payments arising from the change in an index or rate; or

(Continued)
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— there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a
residual value guarantee; or

— there is a change in the lease term resulting from a change of its assessment on whether it
will exercise an option to purchase the underlying asset, or

— there is a change of its assessment on whether it will exercise a extension or termination
option; or

—there is any lease modifications

When the lease liability is remeasured, other than lease modifications, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or in profit and loss if the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

When the lease liability is remeasured to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease for
lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the Group accounts for the
remeasurement of the lease liability by decreasing the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset
to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognize in profit or loss any gain or
loss relating to the partial or full termination of the lease.

The Group presents right-of-use assets that do not meet the definition of investment and lease
liabilities as a separate line item respectively in the statement of financial position.

Applicable before January 1, 2019

Lease are operating lease and are not recognized in the Group's balance sheet. Payments made under
operating leases (excluding insurance and maintenance expense) are recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Impairment of non financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other
than inventories and deferred tax assets) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists, then the asset’s recoverable amount is estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates
cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or
CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less
costs to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable
amount,
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Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss. They are allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill allocated to the CGU, and then to reduce the carrying amounts of the other
assets in the CGU on a pro rata basis.

Revenue
(1) Revenue from contracts with customers

1) Revenue is measured based on the consideration to which the Group expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer. The Group
recognizes revenue when it satisfies a performance obligation by transferring control of a
good or a service to a customer. The accounting policies for the Group’s main types of
revenue are explained below.

a) Sale of goods

The Group manufactures and sells medical equipment. The Group recognizes
revenue when control of the products has transferred, being when the products are
delivered to the customer. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specific location, the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customer, and either the customer has accepted the products in accordance with the
sales contract, the acceptance provisions have lapsed, or the Group has objective
evidence that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

A receivable is recognized when the goods are delivered, as this is the point in time
that the Group has a right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional.

b) Financing components

The Group does not expect to have any contracts where the period between the transfer
of the promised goods or services to the customer and payment by the customer exceeds
one year. As a consequence, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for
the time value of money.

(ii)) Contract costs
1) Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

The Group recognizes as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a
customer if the Group expects to recover those costs. The incremental costs of obtaining
a contract are those costs that the Group incurs to obtain a contract with a customer that
it would not have incurred if the contract had not been obtained. Costs to obtain a
contract that would have been incurred regardless of whether the contract was obtained
shall be recognized as an expense when incurred, unless those costs are explicitly
chargeable to the customer regardless of whether the contract is obtained.

The Group applies the practical expedient to recognize the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract as an expense when incurred if the amortization period of the asset that the
entity otherwise would have recognized is one year or less.
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2)  Costs to fulfil a contract

If the costs incurred in fulfilling a contract with a customer are not within the scope of
another Standard (for example, IAS 2 Inventories, IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
or IAS 38 Intangible Assets), the Group recognizes an asset from the costs incurred to
fulfil a contract only if those costs meet all of the following criteria:

— the costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

—the costs generate or enhance resources of the Group that will be used in satisfying (or
in continuing to satisfy) performance obligations in the future; and

—the costs are expected to be recovered.

General and administrative costs, costs of wasted materials, labor or other resources to
fulfil the contract that were not reflected in the price of the contract, costs that relate to
satisfied performance obligations (or partially satisfied performance obligations), and
costs for which the Group cannot distinguish whether the costs relate to unsatisfied
performance obligations or to satisfied performance obligations(or partially satisfied
performance obligations), the Group recognizes these costs as expenses when incurred.

(m) Employee benefits

@

(ii)

Defined contribution plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are expensed as the related service
is provided.

Defined benefit plans

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each
the plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current
and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for the
Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the
form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan. To
calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable
minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses,
the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income, and
accumulated in retained earnings within equity. The Group determines the net interest expense
on the net defined benefit liability for the period by applying the discount rate used to measure
the defined benefit obligation at the beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined
benefit liability. Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are
recognized in profit or loss.
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When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is recognized immediately
in profit or loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit
plan when the settlement occurs.

(iii)) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are expensed as the related service is provided. A liability is
recognized for the amount expected to be paid if the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation to pay this amount as a result of past service provided by the employee and the
obligation can be estimated reliably.

Income taxes

Income taxes comprise current taxes and deferred taxes. Except for expenses related to business
combinations or recognized directly in equity or other comprehensive income, all current and
deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss.

The Group has determined that interest and penalties related to income taxes, including uncertain tax
treatment, do not meet the definition of income taxes, and therefore accounted for them under
1AS37.

Current taxes comprise the expected tax payables or receivables on the taxable profits (losses) for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respect of previous years. The
amount of current tax payables or receivables are the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be
paid or received that reflects uncertainty related to income taxes, if any. It is measured using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred taxes arise due to temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and their respective tax bases. Deferred taxes are
recognized except for the following:

(i) temporary differences on the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in a transaction that is
not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profits (losses) at
the time of the transaction;

(i) temporary differences related to investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint arrangements
to the extent that the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that they will not reverse in the foreseeable future; and

(iii) taxable temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred taxes are measured at tax rates that are expected to be applied to temporary differences
when they reserve, using tax rates enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset if the following criteria are met:

(i) the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities; and
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(ii) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same
taxation authority on either.

1)  the same taxable entity; or

2)  different taxable entities which intend to settle current tax assets and liabilities on a net
basis, or to realize the assets and liabilities simultaneously, in each future period in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or assets are expected to be settled or
recovered.

Deferred tax assets are recognized for the carry forward of unused tax losses, unused tax credits, and
deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which they can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date
and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefits will be
realized; such reductions are reversed when the probability of future taxable profits improves.

Earnings per share

The Group discloses the Company’ s basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company. Basic earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to
ordinary shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding. Diluted earnings per share is calculated as the profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding after adjustment for the effects of all potentially dilutive ordinary shares, such as
employee bonus.

Operating segments

An operating segment is a component of the Group that engages in business activities from which it
may earn revenues and incur expenses (including revenues and expenses relating to transactions with
other components of the Group). Operating results of the operating segment are regularly reviewed
by the Group’s chief operating decision maker to make decisions about resources to be allocated to
the segment and to assess its performance. Each operating segment consists of standalone financial
information,

Significant accounting assumptions and judgments, and major sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with the Regulations Governing the
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and IFRSs endorsed by the FSC requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of the accounting
policies and the reported amount of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The management continues to monitor the accounting estimates and assumptions. The management
recognizes any changes in accounting estimates during the period and the impact of those changes in
accounting estimates in the following period.
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Information about judgments made in applying accounting policies that have the most significant effects
on the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial statements is as follows:

(a) The loss allowance of trade receivable

The Group has estimated the loss allowance of trade receivable that is based on the risk of a default
occurring and the rate of expected credit loss. The Group has considered historical experience,
current economic conditions and forward-looking information at the reporting date to determine the
assumptions to be used in calculating the impairments and the selected inputs. The relevant
assumptions and input values, please refer to note 6(d).

(b) Valuation of inventories

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realizable value, the Group estimates the net
realizable value of inventories for obsolescence and unmarketable items at the end of the reporting
period and then writes down the cost of inventories to net realizable value. Refer to note 6(e) for
further description of the valuation of inventories

(6) Explanation of significant accounts:
(a) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Cash on hand $ 670 509
Cash in bank 983,863 757,584
RP bills 70,063 168,508
Cash and cash equivalents in the consolidated statement of cash
flows $ 1,054,596 926,601

Please refer to note 6(r) for the exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, and sensitivity analysis of the
financial assets and liabilities of the Group.

(b) Current financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Financial assets designated as at fair value through profit
or loss:
RP bills $ 30,499 30,308
Mandatorily measured at fair value through profit or loss:
Non-derivative financial assets
Money market funds and bond funds 144,033 143,167
Stock listed on domestic markets 3,586 2,850
Total $ 178,118 176,325
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(i)  For credit risk and market risk, please refer to note 6(r).
(i1) The financial assets of the Group were not collateralized.
Non-current financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Equity investments at fair value though other
comprehensive income:

Stock listed on domestic markets S - 237

(1) Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income

The Group designated the investments shown above as equity securities at fair value through
other comprehensive income because these equity securities represent those investments that
the Group intends to hold for long-term for strategic purposes.

In the second quarter of 2019, the Group has disposed its equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income for the purpose of investment management. The shares
sold had a fair value of $211 thousand, wherein the Group realized a loss of $1,341 thousand,
which was recognized as other comprehensive income; then later on, reclassified to retained
earnings.

There were no disposals of strategic investments and transfers of any cumulative gain or loss
within equity relating to these investments as of December 31, 2018.

(i1) For credit risk and market risk, please refer to note 6(r).
(ii1) The financial assets of the Group were not collateralized.
Notes and trade receivables

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Notes receivable $ 68,834 71,638
Trade receivables 218,958 211,038
Less: Loss allowance - -
$ 287,792 282.676
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The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for its expected credit losses, i.e. the use of
lifetime expected loss provision for all receivables. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due, as
well as incorporated forward looking information. The loss allowance provision were determined as

follows:
December 31, 2019
Gross carrying Weighted- Loss allowance
amount average loss rate provision

Current $ 267,158 - -
1 to 30 days past due 20,383 - -
31 to 60 days past due 86 - -
61 to 90 days past due 165 - -
91 to 120 days past due - - -
121 to 150 days past due - 1.08 % -
151 to 180 days past due - 871 % -
More than 181 days past due - 100 % -

$ 287,792 -

December 31, 2018
Gross carrying Weighted- Loss allowance
amount average loss rate provision

Current $ 265,215 - -
1 to 30 days past due 17,461 - -
31 to 60 days past due - - -
61 to 90 days past due - - -
91 to 120 days past due - - -
121 to 150 days past due - 9.40 % -
151 to 180 days past due - 20.86 % -
More than 181 days past due - 100 % -

$ 282.676 -

The notes and accounts receivables of the Group were not collateralized.

For further credit risk information, please refer to note 6(r).
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(e) Inventories
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018

Raw materials S 151,400 169,502
Work in progress 54,982 55,222
Finished goods 47,030 37,501
Merchandise 2,430 3,057

Raw materials in transit 12,436 16,452

$ 268,278 281.734

Except for cost of goods sold and inventories recognized as operating cost, the remaining gains or

losses which were recognized as operating cost or deduction of operating cost were as follows:

Gains on physical inventory

Losses on valuation of inventories

The inventories of the Group were not collateralized.

(f) Property, plant and equipment

2019 2018
(5,211) (4,795)
1,777 500
(3.434) (4,295)

The cost and accumulated depreciation of the property, plant and equipment of the Group for the

years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

Building Machinery
and and Transportation Office Other Construction
Land structures quif quif t i quip in progress Total
Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ 91,834 752,516 697,043 9,670 20,672 140,591 7,393 1,719,719
Additions - 19,204 10,757 - 3,101 9,971 39,632 82,665
Disposals - (18,831) (63) - (133) (310) - (19,337)
Reclassification (Note) - 1,492 43,347 - 1,080 9,681 (24,813) 30,787
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates . (7,170) (2,377 (34) (38) (1,247) (420) (11,286)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 91,834 747,211 748,707 9,636 24,682 158,686 21,792 1,802,548
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 91,834 733,352 676,379 9,066 19,570 114,377 6,738 1,651,316
Additions - 2,530 4,847 - 1,058 13,406 7,225 29,066
Disposals - - (660) - (81) - (741)
Reclassification (Note) - 6,136 13,261 - 11,521 (6,706) 24,212
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates N 10,498 3,216 604 44 1,368 136 15,866
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 91,834 752,516 697,043 9,670 20,672 140,591 7,393 1,719,719
Accumulated depreciation and impairment loss:
Balance at January 1, 2019 $ - 194,651 455,755 5,224 17,436 101,919 - 774,985
Depreciation - 17,900 44,882 792 1,557 22,516 - 87,647
Disposals . 29) 63) - (133) (26) - (251
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates . (2,094) (750) (25) 28) (718) . (3,615)
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ - 210,428 499,824 5,991 18,832 123,691 - 858,766
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Building Machinery
and and Transportation Office Other Construction
Land structures qui t quip quip quip in progress Total
Balance at January 1, 2018 $ 174,326 412,932 4,318 16,252 84,380 692,208
Depreciation 19,689 42,833 882 1,161 17,030 81,595
Disposals (568) 41 - (609)
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates - 636 558 24 23 550 1,791
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 194,651 455,755 5,224 17,436 101,919 774,985
Carrying amounts:
Balance at December 31, 2019 $ 91,834 536,783 248,883 3,645 5,850 34,995 21,792 943,782
Balance at Janvary 1, 2018 $ 91,834 559,026 263,447 4,748 3,318 29,997 6,738 959,108
Balance at December 31, 2018 $ 91,834 557,865 241,288 4,446 3,236 38,672 7,393 944,734

()

(h)

(Note) Prepayments for business facilities were reclassified as property, plant and equipment.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the property, plant and equipment of the Group had been

pledged as collateral for borrowings; please refer to note 8.

Right-of-use assets

The Group leases many assets including land and buildings. Information about leases for which the

Group as a lessee is presented below:

Cost:
Balance at January 1, 2019
Effects of retrospective application
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2019
Accumulated depreciation:
Balance at January 1, 2019
Depreciation
Effect of changes in foreign exchange rates
Balance at December 31, 2019
Carrying amount:
Balance at December 31, 2019

Short-term and long-term borrowings

(i)  Short-term borrowings

Unsecured bank loans
Unused credit lines

Range of interest rate

Buildings and

Land structures Total
$ - - -
50,728 20,352 71,080
(1,058) 10 (1,0438)
$ 49,670 20,362 70,032
$ - _ -
734 4,956 5,690
20) (3) (23)
$ 714 4,953 5,667
$ 48,956 15,409 64,365
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
$ - 25,000
$ 947,322 663,345
- 1%
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(i) Long-term borrowings

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Unsecured bank loans $ 10,027 46,080
Less: Current portion (10,027) (35.840)
$ - 10,240
Unused credit lines $ 30,080 30,720
Range of interest rate 3.75% 3.75%~4.49%

Parts of the Group’s long-term borrowings (included current portion) will be settled in foreign
currency. The details of foreign long-term liabilities were as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
USD (thousand dollars) $ 333 1,500

Convert to NTD $ 10,027 46,080

As of December 31, 2019, the remaining balance of the borrowing due were as follows:

Period Amount
2020.01.01~2020.12.31 S 10,027

For the collateral for borrowing, please refer to note 8.
Lease liabilities

December 31,

2019
Current S 4,933
Non-current $ 10,549

For the maturity analysis, please refer to note 6(r).

There were no significant issues, repurchases and repayments of lease liabilities for the years ended
December 31, 2019.

The amounts recognized in profit or loss were as follows:

2019
Interest on lease liabilities $ 166
The amounts recognized in the statement of cash flows for the Group was as follows:

2019
Total cash outflow for leases $ 5,046
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(i) Leases of land , buildings and structures

As of December 31, 2019, the Group leases land , buildings and structures for its office space
and parking lot. The leases of office space typically run for a period of 2 to 6 years. Some
leases include an option to renew the lease for an additional period of 2 to 3 years after the end
of the contract term.

Some leases of equipment contain extension options exercisable. These leases are negotiated
and monitored by local management, and accordingly, contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. The extension options held are exercisable only by the Group and not by the
lessors. In which leasee is not reasonably certain to use an optional extended lease term,
payments associated with the optional period are not included within lease liabilities.

Operating lease

Since July 15, 2013, the Group has leased land from Hermosa Industrial Zone in the Philippines,
with a lease term of 50 years, which will expire on July 14, 2063. After the expiry date, it will be
extended automatically for another 25 years, with the expiration date on July 14, 2088. The rental

for 75 years amounted to PHP77,148 thousand (approximately 53,391 thousand), which has already
been paid.

As of December 31, 2018, the amounts of the prepaid rent were $50,728 thousand , which

recognized in other current assets of $730 thousand and in other non-current assets of $49,998
thousand , respectively.

The amounts of rental were as follows:

2018
Operating costs $ 717

Employee benefits
(i) Defined benefit plans
Only the Company use the defined benefit plans.

Reconciliation of defined benefit obligation at present value and plan asset at fair value were

as follows:
December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Present value of the defined benefit obligations $ 28,504 29,771
Fair value of plan assets (19.262) (19.673)
Net defined benefit liabilities $ 9,242 10,098
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The Group makes defined benefit plan contributions to the pension fund account in the Bank
of Taiwan that provides pensions for employees upon retirement. Plans (covered by the Labor
Standards Law) entitle a retired employee to receive retirement benefits based on years of
service and average monthly salary for six months prior to retirement.

1)

2)

3)

Composition of plan assets

The Group allocates pension funds in accordance with the Regulations for Revenues,
Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilization of the Labor Retirement Fund, and such funds
are managed by the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor. With regard to the
utilization of the funds, minimum earnings shall be no less than the earnings attainable
from two-year time deposits with interest rates offered by local banks.

The Group's Bank of Taiwan labor pension reserve account balance amounted to $19,262
thousand as of December 31, 2019. For information on the utilization of the labor
pension fund assets, including the asset allocation and yield of the fund, please refer to
the website of the Bureau of Labor Funds, Ministry of Labor.

The movement in present value of the defined benefit obligations

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit obligations for the Group were
as follows:

2019 2018
Defined benefit obligations as of January 1 $ 29,771 25,694
Benefits paid (2,086) (382)
Current service costs and interest cost 1,350 1,407
Remeasurements loss (gains) (831) 3,052
Defined benefit obligations as of December 31 $ 28.504 29,771

The movement in fair value of the defined benefit plan assets

The movements in the present value of the defined benefit plan assets for the Group were
as follows:

2019 2018
Fair value of plan assets as of January 1 $ 19,673 18,403
Amounts contributed to plan 880 943
Benefits paid (2,086) (382)
Interest revenue 206 262
Remeasurements gains (loss) 589 447
Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 $ 19,262 19,673
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The expenses recognized in profit or losses

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the expenses recognized in profit or
losses for the Group were as follows:

2019 2018
Current service costs $ 1,035 1,054
Net interest of net defined benefit obligations 109 91
$ 1,144 1,145

2019 2018
Operating costs $ 304 278
Operating expenses 840 867
$ 1,144 1,145

The remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities recognized in other
comprehensive income

The remeasurements of the net defined benefit liabilities recognized in other
comprehensive income were as follows:

2019 2018
Balance as of Januaryl $ (453) 2,152
Recognized in the current period 1,120 (2,605)
Balance as of December 31 $ 667 (453)

Actuarial assumptions
The principal actuarial assumptions at the reporting date were as follows:
The defined benefit obligations:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Discount rate 1.00 % 1.13 %
Future salary increase rate 1.50 % 1.50 %

Cost of the defined benefit plan assets:

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Discount rate 1.13 % 1.38 %
Future salary increase rate 1.50 % 1.00 %
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The expected allocation payment to be made by the Group to the defined benefit plans
for the one-year period after the reporting date is $888 thousand. The weighted average
lifetime of the defined benefit plans is 13.48 years.

7)  Sensitivity analysis

When calculating the present of the defined benefit plan assets, the related actuarial
assumptions at the reporting date, including the discount rate, the demission rate and the
change of the future salary rate, are required to be judged and estimated.

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the changes in main actuarial assumptions might
have an impact on the present value of the defined benefit obligation as follows:

Influences of defined benefit obligations
Increase by 0.25%  Decrease by 0.25%

Balance as of December 31, 2019

Discount rate § 849 (855)
Future salary increases rate 829 (799)
Balance as of December 31, 2018

Discount rate 874 (912)
Future salary increases rate 890 (857)

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial
assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have affected the defined
benefit obligation by the amounts shown above. The method used in the sensitivity
analysis is consistent with the calculation of pension liabilities in the balance sheets.

There is no change in the method and assumptions used in the preparation of sensitivity
analysis for 2019 and 2018,.

(ii) Defined contribution plans

The Company allocates 6% each employee’ s monthly wages to the labor pension personal
account at the Bureau of Labor Insurance in accordance with the provisions of the Labor
Pension Act. Under these defined contribution plans, the Company allocates a fixed amount to
the Bureau of Labor Insurance without additional legal or constructive obligations.

The pension costs incurred from the contributions to the Bureau of the Labor Insurance

amounted to $7,977 thousand and $7,739 thousand for the years ended December 31, 2019 and
2018, respectively.
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(ili) The Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the Philippine have a defined contribution plan,

Wherein a monthly contributions to an independent fund, administered by the government in
accordance with the pension regulations in the Republic of the Philippine, are based on certain
percentage of employees’ monthly salaries and wages. For the years ended December 31, 2019

and 2018, the Group recognized the pension costs amounting to $159 thousand and $181
thousand, respectively, in accordance with the pension regulations.

(iv) Short-term benefit obligations

December 31, December 31,
2019 2019
Paid leave S 449 452

(1) Income taxes

@

Income tax expense

The component of income tax were in the year 2019 and 2018 were as follows:

2019 2018
Current tax expense
Current period $ 115,536 96,854
Adjustment for prior periods (1,784) (65)
113,752 96,789
Deferred tax expense
Origination and reversal of temporary differences 14,646 7,649
Adjustment in tax rate - 5,833
14,646 13,482
Income tax expenses $ 128,398 110,271

Reconciliation of income tax and profit before tax for 2019 and 2018 is as follows.

2019 2018
Profit excluding income tax $ 592.570 515,268
Income tax using the Company’s domestic tax rate $ 118,514 103,054
Adjustment in tax rate - 5,833
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdiction 6,874 1,944
Adjustment for prior periods (1,784) (65)
Undistributed earnings additional tax 3,912 2,369
Other 882 (2.864)
Total $ 128,398 110,271
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(ii)) Deferred tax assets and liabilities

39

Changes in the amount of deferred tax assets and liabilities for the years ended December 31,

2019 and 2018 were as follows:
Deferred tax assets:

Allowance for

obsolete Unrealized

inventories exchange losses Others Total
Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ 908 B 1,749 2,657
Recognized in profit or loss (211) 1,631 16 1,436
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 697 1,631 1,765 4,093
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 687 812 1,567 3,066
Recognized in profit or loss 221 (812) 182 (409)
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 908 = 1,749 2,657
Deferred tax liabilities:

Unrealized

investment

income
recognized under Unrealized
equity method exchange losses Total

Balance as of January 1, 2019 $ 50,976 545 51,521
Recognized in profit or loss 16,627 (545) 16,082
Balance as of December 31, 2019 $ 67,603 - 67,603
Balance as of January 1, 2018 $ 38,448 i 38,448
Recognized in profit or loss 12,528 545 13,073
Balance as of December 31, 2018 $ 50.976 545 51,521

(iii)) The Company’s income tax returns for the years through 2017 were assessed by the Taipei

National Tax Administration.

Capital and other equity

As of December 31, 2019 and 2018, the Company’s authorized share capital consisted of $1,200,000

thousand shares of ordinary share, with $10 dollars par value per share, of which $69,298 thousand
shares, was issued and outstanding. All issued shares were paid up upon issuance.

(i) Capital surplus

Balance of capital surplus at the reporting date were as follows:

Share capital

December 31, December 31,

2019

2018

$ 315,168

315,168
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According to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital surplus can only be used to offset a deficit, and
only the realized capital surplus can be used to increase the common stock or be distributed as
cash dividends. The aforementioned realized capital surplus includes capital surplus resulting
from premium on issuance of capital stock and earnings from donated assets received.
According to the Regulations Governing the Offering and Issuance of Securities by Securities
Issuers, capital increases by transferring capital surplus in excess of par value should not
exceed 10% of the total common stock outstanding.

Retained earnings

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation stipulate that 10% of the annual income or earnings,
after deducting any accumulated deficit, shall be set aside as a legal reserve. When the
balance of such legal reserve reaches an amount equal to the paid-in capital, the appropriation
to legal reserves is discontinued. The remaining balance, if any, shall be appropriated as
special reserve or distributed as shareholders’ equity, which is to be proposed by the board of
directors during the shareholders’ meeting for approval, in accordance with the relevant laws
and regulations.

The Company’ s industry is in its development stage. In order to achieve its sustainable
development goals, the Company is aggressively developing and introducing new products.
Thus, the growth stage requires funds to further expand the Companys’ production lines to
facilitate the growth in a next few years. The Company planned to adopt the policy for
equalization of dividends to be paid in shares or cash, which is more than 20%, in general.
However, if there is a significant capital expenditure in the future (when the purchasing
amount of fixed assets or the investment of production offshoring exceed 10% of the paid-in
capital), all the cash dividend can be converted into shares, with the approval from the
shareholders.

When the Board of Directors decides to distribute the dividend and if the Company’s market
price of common stock is lower than the par value from Over The Counter Market on the
previous day, the cash dividend can be fully or partially paid.

1)  Legal reserve

When a company incurs no loss, it may, pursuant to a resolution by a shareholders’
meeting, distribute its legal reserve by issuing new shares or by distributing cash, and
only the portion of legal reserve which exceeds 25% of capital may be distributed.

2)  Special reserve

In accordance with Ruling No. 1010012865 issued by the FSC on April 6, 2012, a
portion of current-period earnings and undistributed prior-period earnings shall be
reclassified as special earnings reserve during earnings distribution. The amount to be
reclassified should equal the current-period total net reduction of other shareholders’
equity. Similarly, a portion of undistributed prior-period earnings shall be reclassified as
special earnings reserve (which does not qualify for earnings distribution) to account for
cumulative changes to other shareholders’ equity pertaining to prior periods. The
amounts of subsequent reversals pertaining to the net reduction of other shareholders’
equity shall qualify for additional distributions.
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3)  Earnings distribution
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On June 18, 2019 and June 15, 2018, the shareholder’s meeting resolved to distribute the
2018 and 2017 earnings. These earrings were appropriated as follows:

Dividends distributed to ordinary shareholders:

Cash of retained earnings

2018 2017
Amount Amount
per share Amount per share Amount
$ 4.009%_ 277,193 3.50 242,544

On March 11, 2020, the Company's Board of Directors resolved to appropriate the 2019
earnings. These earnings were appropriated as follows:

Dividends distributed to ordinary shareholders:

Cash

(iii) OCI accumulated in reserves, net of tax

Balance at January 1, 2019
Exchange differences on foreign operations

Unrealized gains (losses) from financial asset measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Disposal of investments in equity instruments designated at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2019

Balance at January 1, 2018

Effects of retrospective application

Balance at January 1, 2018 after adjustments
Exchange differences on foreign operations

Unrealized gains (losses) from financial asset measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income

Balance at December 31, 2018

2019

Amount

per share Amount

$ 4.00 $ 277,193
Exchange Unrealized gains (losses)
differences on from financial asset
translation of measured at fair value
foreign financial through other
statements comprehensive income Total
12,259 (1,315) 10,944
(13,973) - (13,973)
- (26) (26)
- 1,341 1,341
1,714) - 1,719)
Exchange Unrealized gains (losses)

differences on
translation of
foreign financial

from financial asset
measured at fair value
through other

Unrealized gains

(losses) on

available-for-sale

statements comprehensive income financial assets Total
(5,235) - (1,224) (6,459)
- (1,224) 1,224 -
(5,235) (1,224) - (6,459)
17,494 - - 17,494
- on - [CD8)
12,259 (1,315) - 10,944
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(n) Earnings per share

The Company’s earnings per share were calculated as follows:

(i) Basic earnings per share
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2019 2018
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company $ 464.172 404,997
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares 69,298 69,298
Basic earnings per share (express in New Taiwan Dollar) $ 6.70 5.84
(i) Diluted earnings per share
2019 2018
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company $ 464,172 404,997
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (basic) 69,298 69,298
Effect of employee remuneration (in thousands) 305 350
Weighted-average number of ordinary shares (diluted)
69.603 69,648
Diluted earnings per share (express in New Taiwan
Dollar) 6.67 5.81
(0) Revenue from contracts with customers
(i) Disaggregation of revenue
2019 2018
Primary geographical markets:
Asia 846,252 713,908
South America 196,447 196,787
North America 263,842 193,396
Others 552,359 508,918
Total 1,858,900 1,613,009
Major products service lines:
Manufacturing, trading and selling of medical equipment 1,858,900 1,613,009
(ii) Contract balances
December 31, December 31, January 1,
2019 2018 2018
Notes and accounts receivable $ 287,792 282,676 267,552
Less: allowance for impairment - - -
Total $ 287,792 282,676 267,552
Current contract liabilities $ 36,709 33,923 15,755
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For details on accounts receivable and allowance for impairment, please refer to note 6(d).

The amount of revenue recognized for the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 that was
included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period were $31,975 thousand
and $13,389 thousand, respectively.

The major change in the balance of contract assets and liabilities is the difference between the
time frame in the performance obligation to be satisfied and the payment to be received.

Remuneration to employees, directors and supervisors

According to the Article of Association, once the Company has annual profit, it should appropriate
no less than 5% of the profit to its employees and 1.6% or less to its directors and supervisors.

The amount of employee remuneration, and directors” and supervisors’ remuneration were estimated
based on profit before tax, net of the amount of the remuneration, and multiplied by the rule of
Company’s Article of Association. The above remuneration were included in the operating expenses
of the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018. The differences between the actual distributed
amounts as determined by the Board of Directors and those recognized in the financial statements, if
any, shall be accounted for as changes in accounting estimates and recognized in profit or loss in the
following year.

For the year ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 the Company accrued and recognized its employee
remuneration amounting to $31,389 and $27,440 thousand, respectively; and its directors’ and

supervisors’ remuneration amounting to $10,045 and $8,781 thousand, respectively. There was no
differences between the actual distributed amounts as determined by the Board of Directors and
those recognized in the financial statements.

The related information mentioned above can be found on websites such as the Market Observation
Post System.

Non-operating income and expenses

(i)  Other income

2019 2018
Interest income:

Interest income from RP bills $ 4,190 3,969
Interest income from funds 359 356
Interest income from deposit 12 11

Interest income from bank deposit
1,405 2,104
5,966 6,440
Subsidy revenue 7,431 6,823
Compensation income 19,139 598
Others 5,130 4,785
$ 37,666 18,646
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(i) Other gains and losses

(ii)

Foreign exchange gains (losses)
Gains (losses) on financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Gains (losses) on disposal of property plant and equipment
Others

Finance costs

Interest expense on bank borrowings

Interest expense on lease liabilities

Financial instruments

®

Credit risk

1y

2)

Credit risk exposure
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2019 2018
$ (7,119) 11,443
1,602 (256)
(19,086) (25)
952 (775)
$ (23.651) 10,387
2019 2018
$ (1,768) (2,957)
(166) -
$ (1,934) (2,.957)

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum amount exposed to

credit risk.

Concentration of credit risk

If the transactions of the financial instruments are significantly concentrated within
certain counterparties, or if the counterparties with similar business activities and
economic characteristics are not significantly concentrated within certain counterparties,
the concentration of credit risk is highly probable. As of December 31, 2019 and 2018,

33% and 30%, respectively, of notes and accounts receivable were from two major

customers.

December 31, 2019

Percentage of
the company's

C Company
F Company

December 31, 2018
C Company

F Company

Amount trade receivables
59,150 21
33,370 12
92.520 33
52,251 18
35,214 12
87,465 30
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3)  Receivables securities

For credit risk exposure of note and trade receivables, please refer to note 6(d).

Other financial assets at amortized costs includes other receivables. The above financial
assets are considered to have low risk, and the impairment provision recognized during
the period was limited to 12 months expected losses. Regarding how the financial
instruments are considered to have low risk, please refer to note 4(g).

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the impairment loss are not recognized

and reserved.

(i) Liquidity risk

The following table shows the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including
estimated interest payments and excluding the impact of netting agreements.

December 31, 2019

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Long-term liabilities, current portion
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Other payables
Payables on machinery and equipment

Lease liabilities (current and non-
current)

December 31, 2018

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Short-term borrowing
Long-term liabilities, current portion
Notes payable
Accounts payable
Other payables
Payables on machinery and equipment
Long-term borrowings

The Group does not expect the cash flows included in the

Carrying Contractual
amount cash flows  within 1 year  1-2 years 2-5 years Over S years

$ 10,027 10,403 10,403 - - -
41,415 41,415 41,415 - - -

66,441 66,441 66,441 - - -

45,733 45,733 45,733 - - -

6,597 6,597 6,597 - - -

15,482 15,721 5,062 4,811 5,848 -

$ 185,695 186,310 175,651 4,811 5,848 -
$ 25,000 25,125 25,125 - - -
35,840 37,681 37,681 - - -

37,807 37,807 37,807 - - -

75,256 75,256 75,256 - - -

35,634 35,634 35,634 - - -

5,941 5,941 5,941 - - -

10,240 10,624 - 10,624 - -

$ 225,718 228,068 217,444 10,624 - -

significantly earlier or at significantly different amount.

maturity analysis to occur
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(iii) Market risk

1)

2)

Currency risk

The Group’s significant exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows:

Financial assets
Monetary items
USD
EUR
JPY
PHP
CNY

Investments accounted for using equity
method

Usb
PHP
Financial liabilities
Monetary items

UsSD
EUR
JPY

PHP

December 31, 2019

December 31, 2018
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Foreign
currency

Exchange
rate

NTD

Foreign
currency

Exchange
rate

NTD

12,916

2,058
85,378
16,610
14,377

20,423
26,031

1,700

163
35,677
20,257

30.08
33.74
0.2772
0.6080
4.321

30.08
0.6080

30.08
33.74
0.2772
0.6080

388,519
69,435
23,662
10,099
62,121

614,311
15,827

51,127
5,493
9,388

12,316

14,218

1,196
54,721
53,363
13,352

18,224
11,833

1,044

296
43,942
27,482

30.72
3524
0.2786
0.5990
4.473

30.72
0.5990

30.72
3524
0.2786
0.5990

436,778
42,159
15,242
31,964
59,725

559,855
7,088

32,068
10,414
12,240
16,462

The Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk arise from the translation of the foreign
currency exchange gains and losses on cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and
trade payables that are denominated in foreign currency.

A strengthening (weakening) of 1% of the NTD against the foreign currency for the years
ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 would have increased (decreased), the net profit
before tax by $4,750 thousand $5,147 thousand, respectively. The analysis is performed
on the same basis for 2018.

Since the Group has many kinds of functional currency, the information on foreign
exchange gain (loss) on monetary items is disclosed by total amount. For the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, foreign exchange gains (losses) (including realized and

unrealized portions) amounted to $(7,119) thousand $11,443 thousand, respectively.
Interest rate analysis

Please refer to the notes on liquidity risk management and interest rate exposure of the
Group’s financial assets and liabilities.

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the exposure to the interest rate risk of
non-derivative financial instruments on the reporting date. Regarding assets with variable
interest rates, the analysis is based on the assumption that the amount of assets
outstanding at the reporting date was outstanding throughout the year. The rate of change
is expressed as the interest rate increases or decreases by 1% when reporting to
management internally, which also represents the Group management's assessment of the
reasonably possible interest rate change.

(Continued)
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If the interest rate had increased / decreased by 1% basic points the Group’s net profit
before tax would have decreased / increased by $100 thousand $711 thousand for the
years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018 with all other variable factors remain constant.
This is mainly due to the Group’s borrowing at floating rates.

Other market price risk

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, the sensitivity analyzes for the
changes in the securities price at the reporting date were performed using the same basis

for the profit and loss as illustrated below:

2019 2018
Other Other
Prices of securities at the = comprehensive Net profit comprehensive Net profit
reporting date income before tax before tax  income before tax before tax
Increasing 1% $ - 36 2 29
Decreasing 1% $ - (36) 2) 29)

(1v) Fair value of financial instruments

1))

Fair value hierarchy

The carrying amount and fair value of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities,
including the information on fair value hierarchy were as follows, however, except as
described in the following paragraphs, for financial instruments not measured at fair
value whose carrying amount is reasonably close to the fair value, and lease liabilities,
disclosure of fair value information is not required:

December 31, 2019
Fair value
Bok value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Non-derivative financial assets mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss $ 147,619 147,619 - - 147,619
Designated at fair value through profit or loss 30,499 30,499 - - 30,499
Subtotal 178,118 178,118 - - 178,118
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents 1,054,596 - - - -
Notes and accounts receivables 287,792 - - - -
Other financial assets 2,469 - - - -
Subtotal 1,344,857 - - - -
Total $_ 1,522,975 178,118 - - 178,118
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Long-term liabilities, current portion $ 10,027 - - - -
Notes and accounts payables 107,856 - - - -
Other payable 45,733 - - - -
Payables on machinery and equipment 6,597 - - - -
Lease liabilities (current and non-current) 15,482
Total $ 185,695 - - - -
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December 31, 2018

Fair value
Bok value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Non-derivative financial assets mandatorily measured
at fair value through profit or loss $ 146,017 146,017 - - 146,017
Designated at fair value through profit or loss 30,308 30,308 - - 30,308
Subtotal 176,325 176,325 - - 176,325
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive
income
Stocks listed on domestic markets 237 237 - - 237
Financial assets measured at amortized cost
Cash and cash equivalents 926,601 - - - -
Notes and accounts receivables 282,676 - - - -
Other financial assets 3915 - - - -
Subtotal 1,213,192 - - - -
Total $ 1,389,754 176,562 - - 176,562
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Short-term borrowings $ 25,000 - - - -
Long-term liabilities, current portion 35,840 - - - -
Notes and accounts payables 113,063 - - - -
Other payable : 35,634 - - - -
Payables on machinery and equipment 5,941 - - - -
Long-term borrowings 10,240 - - - -
Total $ 225,718 - - - -
2)  Valuation techniques for financial instruments measured at fair value

A financial instrument is regarded as being quoted in an active market if quoted prices
are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group,
pricing service, or regulatory agency and those prices represent actual and regularly
occurring market transactions on an arm’s-length basis. Whether transactions are taking
place ‘regularly’ is a matter of judgment and depends on the facts and circumstances of
the market for the instrument.

Quoted market prices may not be indicative of the fair value of an instrument if the
activity in the market is infrequent, the market is not well-established, only small
volumes are traded, or bid-ask spreads are very wide. Determining whether a market is
active involves judgment.

When the financial instruments of the Group is traded in an active market, its fair value is
illustrated by the category and nature as follows:

The fair value of listed stocks and funds traded in an active market is based on the market
quoted price.
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Measurements of fair value of financial instruments without an active market are based
on valuation technique or quoted price from a competitor. Fair value, measured by using
valuation technique that can be extrapolated from either similar financial instruments or
discounted cash flow method or other valuation techniques, including models, is
calculated based on available market date at the reporting date.

3)  Categories and fair values of financial instruments

The Company strives to use market observable inputs when measuring assets and
liabilities. Different levels of the fair value hierarchy to be used in determining the fair
value of financial instruments are as follows:

a) Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities.

b) Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable
for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

c) Level 3: inputs for the assets or liability that are not based on observable market
data (unobservable inputs).

For the years ended December 31, 2019 and 2018, there were no change on the fair value
hierarchy of financial asset.

(s) Financial risk management

(1)

(ii)

Overview

The Group have exposures to the following risks from its financial instruments:
1)  creditrisk

2)  liquidity risk

3)  market risk

The following likewise discusses the Group’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring
and managing the above mentioned risks. For more disclosures about the quantitative effects of
these risks exposures, please refer to the respective notes in the accompanying consolidated
financial statements.

Structure of risk management

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the
risk management framework. The board chairman and general manager are responsible for
developing and monitoring the Group’s risk management policies. Also they report regularly to
the Board of Directors on the activities performed by Group.

(Continued)
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The Group’s risk management policies are established to identify and analyze the risks faced
by the Group, to set and monitor appropriate risk limits and controls, to ensure they are
adhered to accordingly. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training
and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and constructive
control environment in which all employees understand their roles and obligations.

The Board of Directors ensures that the supervision of the management is in compliance with
the Group’s risk management policies and procedures, as well as reviews the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Group. The Board of the
Company is assisted in its oversight role by an Internal Audit, wherein the Internal Audit
undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews of risk management controls and procedures, in
which the results are to be reported to the Board of Directors.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s
receivables from customers and investments in debt securities.

1)  Trade and other receivable

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is mainly influenced by its individual customer’s
condition. The management also assess the statistical information based on the Group’s
customers, including the default risk of the customer’s industry and nation, which have
the factors to influence the Group’s credit risk. For the years ended December 31, 2019
and 2018, the Group’s accounts receivable were not concentrated in any geographical
location, therefore, there were no concentration of credit risks.

The Group has established a credit policy under which each new customer is analyzed
individually for creditworthiness before the Group’s standard payment and delivery
terms and conditions are offered. Purchase limits are established for each customer and
represent the maximum open amount without requiring approval from the Board of
Directors; these limits are reviewed periodically.

The Group sets the allowance for its doubtful accounts to reflect the estimated loss of its
trade and other receivables, as well as its investments. The major component of the
allowance account contains individually significant exposure related to specific losses.
Also, the component includes the losses on similar asset groups that have occurred but
not yet identified.

The allowance for doubtful account is based on statistical information of historical
payment of the similar financial assets.

(Continued)
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2)  Investments

The exposure to credit risk for the bank deposits, fixed income investments, and other
financial instruments is measured and monitored by the Group’s finance department. The
Group only deals with banks, other external parties, corporate organizations, government
agencies and financial institutions with good credit rating. The Group does not expect
any counterparty above fails to meet its obligations hence there is no significant credit
risk arising from these counterparties.

3)  Guarantees

The Group’s policy is to provide financial guarantees only to wholly owned subsidiaries.
At December 31, 2019, no other guarantees were outstanding.

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations
associated with its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial
asset. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it
always has sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group uses activity-based costing to cost its products and services, which assists it in
monitoring cash flow requirements and optimizing its cash return on investments. The Group
aims to maintain the level of its cash and cash equivalents and other highly marketable debt
investments at an amount in excess of expected cash flows on financial liabilities (other than
trade payables) over the succeeding 60 days. The Group also monitors the level of expected
cash outflows on trade and other payables. This excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters. As of December
31, 2019 and 2018, the Group's unused credit line were amounted to $977,402 thousand and

$694,065 thousand, respectively.
Market risk

Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, and equity
prices, which will affect the Group’ s income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments. In order to manage and control the foreign exchange rates, the Group will
maintain a certain limit of the net portion of the foreign currency.

The Group designates the stocks listed on domestic markets and bond funds which are
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income respectively; and therefore, the valuation of equity prices
will fluctuate according to the changes in market prices. To manage the market risk, the Group
transacts with securities trusts institutions with good credit ratings and estimates the equity
price risk of its equity instruments through a professional manager.

The Group is exposed to interest risk on the fair value of its financial asset and financial
liabilities due to deposit in bank and bank loans. The changes in interest risk on these financial
instruments have no significant impact on the fair value.
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(t) Capital management

The Board of Directors’ policy is to maintain a strong capital base to ensure the confidence of
investors, creditors and market, and to sustain future development of the business. The Group use
the debt-to-equity ratio to manage capital. This ratio is the total net debt divided by the total capital.
The net debt from the balance sheet is derived from the total liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents. The total capital and equity include share capital, capital surplus, retained earnings, and
other equity plus net debt. The Group’s debt-to-equity ratio at the end of the reporting period as of
31 December 2019 and 2018, is as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
Total liabilities $ 452,371 457,515
Less: cash and cash equivalents 1,054,596 926,601
Net liabilities (assets) $ (602,225) (469.086)
Total equity $ 1,855,902 1,844.941
(32)% (25)%

The Group's debt-to-equity ratio doesn't change significantly as of December 31, 2019.
(u) Investing and financing activities not affecting current cash flow

The Group’s financial activities which did not affect the current cash flow for the years ended
December 31, 2019 and 2018, were as follows:

January 1, Non-cash changes December 31,
2019 Cash flows Foreign exchange movement 2019
Short-term borrowings $ 25,000 (23,784) (1,216) -
Long-term borrowings (including current portion) 46,080 (36,062) 9 10,027
Lease liabilities (current and non- current) 20,352 (4,880) 10 15,482
Total liabilities from financial activities $ 91,432 (64,726) (1,197 25,509
January 1, Non-cash changes December 31,
2018 Cash flows Foreign exchange movement 2018
Long-term borrowings (including current portion) $ 81,895 (37,715) 1,900 46,080
Total liabilities from financial activities $ 81,895 (37,715) 1,900 46,080

(7) Related-parties transactions:
(a) Names and relationship with related parties

Due to the absence of any transaction with related parties during the periods covered in the
consolidated financial statements, the name and relationships of related parties have not been
disclosed.

(Continued)
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(b) Significant transactions with related parties: None.
(¢) Key management personnel compensation

Key management personnel compensation were comprised as below:

2019 2018
Short-term employee benefits 25,156 21,788
Post-employment benefits 509 509
25,665 22297

(8) Pledged assets:

December 31, December 31,

Pledged assets Object 2019 2018
Other current financial assets:
Restricted bank deposit Purchase guarantee $ 601 601
Property, plant and equipment
Land Credit of short-term borrowings 91,834 91,834
Buildings and structures Credit of short-term borrowings 183,816 191,729
Machinery and equipment Credit of short-term borrowings 11,322 19,367
$ 287,573 303,531

(9) Commitments and contingencies:
(a) Contingencies

In prior years, the Group entered into the license agreement which has expired with a supplier. On
July 5, 2018, the supplier filed a complaint which has not completed accusing the Group. The Group
assess there is no the significant impact on its consolidated financial statements.

(b) Notes issued as guarantee

December 31, December 31,
2019 2018
832,160 743,600

Long and short term borrowings $

(¢) The agreements for expansion of the factory and purchases of machinery and equipment

December 31, December 31,

2019 2018
Total contract price $ 173,832 140,761
Paid amount $ 136,056 77,348

(Continued)
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(10) Losses Due to Major Disasters: None

(11) Subsequent Events: None
(12) Other:

54

A summary of current-period employee benefits, depreciation, and amortization, by function, is as

follows:
By function| 2019 2018
By item Cost of sales | Operating Cost of sales | Operating
expenses Total expenses Total
Employee benefits
Salary 206,628 95,697 302,325 183,600 90,928 274,528
Labor and health insurance 15,600 5,548 21,148 14,493 5,186 19,679
Pension 6,030 3,250 9,280 5,806 3,259 9,065
Remuneration of directors - 7,725 7,725 - 6,537 6,537
Others 9,498 3,704 13,202 8,630 3,665 12,295
Depreciation 84,697 8,640 93,337 77,963 3,632 81,595
Amortization 953 1,841 2,794 2,026 2,292 4,318

(Continued)



55

BIOTEQUE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(13) Other disclosures:
(a) Information on significant transactions:

The followings were the information on significant transactions required by the “Regulations Governing the Preparation of
Financial Reports by Securities Issuers” for the Group for the years ended December 31, 2019 :

(i) Leading to other parties:

(In thousands of dollars)

Highest balance Purposes of | Transaction Collateral
of financing to Range of fimd amount for Reasons
other parties Amount of used |interest rates| financing forf  business for Individual | Maximum
Nameof | Nameof | Account during the period| Ending balance | loan facilities | duringthe fthe borrower| betweentwo | short-tern | Allowance funding loan| limit of fund
Number lender barrower name _ [Related party Note 3) (Note 3) (Note4) period (Note 1} parties financing | for bad debt Ttem Value limits financing
1 [BIOTEQUE [BIOTEQUE |Accounts Yes 216,230 120,320 120,320 2% 2 - [Working - None - 261,400 261,400
IMEDICAL [MEDICAL [receivable [Capital
lco., LTD. [PHIL. INC. [rom related (USD7.000) [ (USD4000) (USD4,000) (Note2) | (Note2)
[parties

Note 1: Purposes of lending were as follows:
1. Business relationship
2. Short-term financing

Note 2: For entities in which the Company, directly or indirectly, owned 100% of their shares, the amount available for financing shall not exceed the net worth of the
borrower.

Note 3: The maximum balance for the period and ending balance represent the amounts approved by the Board of Directors.

Note 4: The amounts of the transaction and the ending balance had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

(ii) Guarantees and endorsements for other parties:

(In thousands of dollars)

Counter-party of Limitation on
guarantee and amount of Highest Balance of [Ratio of accumulated| Parent company Subsidiary Endorsements/
endorsement and balance for guarantees Properly amounts of i to
Relati i d and and pledged for guarantees and amount for guarantees to guaraniees third parties
with the for a specific and to net and | third parties on | to third parties { on behalf of
Name of Company enterprise during as of Actual usage | endorsements | worth of the latest | endorsements behalf of on behalf of companies in
Number ! _guarantor Name ote 3) (Note 2) the period reporting date | _amount {Amount) financial statements Note 1 subsidiary parent company | Mainland China
1 [The Company [BIOTEQUE 4 207,894 30,810 - - - - % 339,561 Y N N
IMEDICAL (USD 1,000
ICO., LTD.
2 [The Company [BIOTEQUE 4 207,894 205,400 120,320 10,027 - 484 % 339,561 Y N N
IMEDICAL (USD 6,500 (USD4,000 ¥ (USD 333 )]
[PHIL. INC.

Note 1: The total amount for the guarantees and endorsements provided by the Company to external entities shall not exceed 49% of the Company's shares. The total
amount for the guarantees and endorsements provided by the Company and its subsidiaries to external entities shall not exceed 49% of the Company's net worth.

Note 2: The total amount for the guarantees and endorsements provided by the Company to any individual entity shall not exceed 30% of the Company's shares. The total
amount for the guarantees and endorsements provided by the Company and its subsidiaries to any individual entity shall not exceed 30% of the Company's net
worth.

Note 3: Relationship with the Company
1. Ordinary business relationship.
2. An entity, directly and indirectly, owned more than 50% voting shares of a guarantor.
3. A guarantor, directly and indirectly, owned more than 50% voting shares of an entity.
4. An entity, directly and indirectly, owned more than 90% voting shares of a guarantor.
5. Fulfillment of contractual obligations by providing mutual endorsements and guarantees for peer or joint builders in order to undertake a construction project.
6. An entity that is guaranteed and endorsed by all capital contributing shareholders in proportion to their shareholding percentages.

7. Peer engaged in the escrow of the sales contract on pre-sale house under the Consumer Protection Act.

(Continued)
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(iii) Information regarding securities held at the reporting date (subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures not included):

@v)

™

(vi)

(vii)

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Ending balance Highest
Category and Relationship 5 Shares/Units N Percentage of Fair value Percentage of
Name of holder name of security with company Account title (in thousands) Cartying value ownership (%) ownership (%) Remark
IThe Company Capital Money Market Fund| None [Current financial 641 10,379 - 10,379 -
assets at fair value
[through profit or loss
” 'Yuanta Wan Tai Money n ” 2,497 37,964 - 37,964 -
[Market Fund
” Franklin Templeton Sinoam ” " 2,992 31,059 - 31,059 -
IMoney Market Fund
“ IMega Diamond Money n ” 2,894 36,433 - 36,433 -
IMarket Fund
" Paradigm Pion Money " ” 1.970 22,848 - 22,848 -
Market Fund
[CHUNGTEX E.SUN FINANCIAL " [Current financial 34 951 - 951 -
INVESTMENT CO., HOLDING lassets at fair value
ILTD. COMPANY,LTD. through profit or loss
" China Steel Corporation " " 1 262 - 262 -
" UNITED ” " 10 165 - 165 -
MICROELECTRONICS
CORP.
" [EVERGREEN MARINE " " - 3 - 3 -
CORP. (TAIWAN) LTD.
” CHANG HWA ” ” 32 722 - 722 -
ICONNERCIAL BANK.,
ILTD.
4 [TAISHIN FINANCIAL " n 65 944 - 944 -
[HOLDING CO., LTD.
" EXCELSIOR MEDICAL " ” 10 539 - 539 -
ICO., LTD
" PineBridge Emerging " ” 378 3,160 - 3,160 -
Market Corporate Strategy
[Bond Fund B
" [Fuh Hwa Emerging Market " ” 412 2,190 - 2,190 -
[High Yield Bond Fund B
BIOTEQUE MEDICAL [Bonds with a rating of BBB] ” " - 30,499 - 30,499 -
CO., LTD or better by the standard &
[poor’s

Note: If there are public markets prices, the fair value shall be evaluated by the last operating date of the accounting duration.

Information regarding purchase or sale of securities for the period exceeding 300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in

capital: None.

Information on acquisition of real estate with purchase amount exceeding 300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in

capital: None.

Information regarding receivables from disposal of real estate exceeding 300 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in

capital: None.

Information regarding related-parties purchases and/or sales exceeding 100 million or 20% of the Company’ s paid-in

capital: None.

(Continued)
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(viii) Information regarding receivables from related-parties exceeding 100 million or 20% of the Company’s paid-in capital:

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Naie of Nature of Ending Tumover Overdue Amounts received in|  Allowance
company Counter-party relationship balance rate Amount Action taken subsequent period for bad debts
[The Company IBIOTEQUE MEDICAL Subsidiary 249875 1.71 - - 27,256 -
PHIL. INC.

Note: The amounts of the transaction and the ending balance had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

(ix) Information regarding trading in derivative financial instruments: None.

(x) Significant transactions and business relationship between the parent company and its subsidiaries for the year ended

December 31, 2019:
(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)
Nature of Intercompany transactions
No. relationship Percentage of the consolidated
(Note 1) | Name of company | Name of counter-party (Note 2) Account name Amount Trading terms net revenue or total assets
0 [The Company IBIOTEQUE MEDICAL 1 |Account 189,395 0OA 270 6.44%
PHIL. INC. receivables
0 [The Company BIOTEQUE MEDICAL 1 IProcessing costs 61,134 [There is no significant 3.29%
PHIL. INC. difference from
ltranslation terms with
mon-related parties.
0 [The Company BIOTEQUE MEDICAL 1 Other receivables 60,480 0A 270 2.06%
IPHIL. INC.
0 [The Company IBIOTEQUE MEDICAL 1 |Account payables 28,417 0OA 30 0.97%
IPHIL. INC.
1 IBIOTEQUE IBIOTEQUE MEDICAL 3 Other receivables 120,320 2% 4.09%
MEDICAL CO., [PHIL. INC.
LTD.

Note 1: Company numbering as follows:

Parent company — 0

Subsidiary starts from 1

Note 2: The numbering of the relationship between transaction parties as follows:

Parent company to subsidiary —1

Subsidiary to parent company —2

Subsidiary to subsidiary —3

Note 3: The amounts of the transaction and the ending balance had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

(b)

©

Information on investees:

The following are the information on investees for the year ended December 31, 2019 (excluding information on investees in
Mainland China):

(In thousands of New Taiwan Dollars)

Main Original investment amount Balance as of Decomber 31, 2019 Thghest Net income Sharc of
tusinesses and Shates Percentage of Percentage of (losses) profits (lasses) of
Name of investor Name of investee Location products December 31,2019 | December 31, 2018 | (in thousands) ownership Carrying velue ownership of investee investee Remark
[The Company RIOTEQUE amaa nvestment activities 16,349 16,349 500 100.00 %4 261,400 100.00 %] 3,553 3553]  Subsidiary
IMEDICAL COC., LTD,
IThe Company IcHUNGTEX [Taipei ovestment activities 28,800 28,800 2,380 100.00 % 20936 100.06 % 1,269 1,269
NVESTMENT CO.,
ILTD,
[The Company [BIOTEQUE ilippi ing and 299,315 299,315 4,481 100.00 %4 352,911 100.00 o} 70,034 70,034 "
{EDICAL PHIL. INC. [Trading of Medical
lequipment
[BIOTEQUE MEDICAL  [BONTEQ MEDICAL  [Philippines [Trading of Medical 6,801 6,801 100 100.00 % 15,827 100.00 % 8,695 3,605| Investment
IPHIL. 1N, [DISTRIBUTION PHIL| lequipment through
NC. subsidiary

Note: The amount of the transaction and the ending balance had been offset in the consolidated financial statements.

Information on investment in Mainland China: None.

(Continued)



58

BIOTEQUE CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(14) Segment information:

(a) General information

(i) The Group’s reportable segments were as follows:

1)

2)

3)

4)

Segment A: manufacturing medical disposables for hemodialysis use, and selling them to
global dealers and retailers.

Segment B: manufacturing and selling catheters for healthcare and medical PVC IV bag
to medical organizations.

Segment C: manufacturing and selling medical key components and inner catheters to
medical organization.

Other Segment: BIOTEQUE MEDICAL CO., LTD., CHUNGTEX INVESTMENT CO.,
LTD., BIOTEQUE MEDICAL PHIL. INC., and BONTEQ MEDICAL DISTRIBUTION
PHIL. INC sell their products and related parts to non-continuous customers who are
engaged in investment and securities.

The reportable segments are the Group’s divisions which provide different products and
services, and are managed separately because they require different technology and marketing
strategies.

(b) Information about reportable segments and their measurement and reconciliations

Taxation, as well as profit and loss, incurred from extraordinary activities can not be allocated to
each reportable segments. In addition, not all reportable segments include depreciation and
amortization of significant non-cash items. The reportable amount is similar to that of the report
used by the chief operating decision maker,

The operating segment accounting policies are similar to those described in note 4 “significant
accounting policies” except for the recognition and measurement of pension cost, which is on a cash
basis. The profits or losses of the Group’s operating segments are measured by the pre-tax operating
profits or losses, which is regarded as the base on the performance. The Group treated intersegment
sales and transfers as third-party transactions. They are measured by cost markups.

The Group’s operating segment information and reconciliation were as follows:

years ended December 31, 2019

Segment Segment Segment Other Reconciliation
A B C Segment and elimination Total

Revenue:

Revenue from external customers  $ 792,711 322,429 728,869 14,891 - 1,858,900

Intersegment revenue - 23,219 - - (23,219) -

Interest received - - - 5,966 - 5,966
Total revenue S 792,711 345,648 728.869 20,857 (23,219) 1,864,866
Interest expense S - - - 1,934 - 1,934
Depreciation and amortization $ 18,176 33,359 8,099 41,676 (5,179) 96,131
Reporting segment profit or loss $ 137,858 84,387 359,549 10,776 - 592,570
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years ended December 31, 2018
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Segment Segment Segment Other Reconciliation
A B C Segment and elimination Total

Revenue:

Revenue from external customers  $ 698,064 290,773 610,537 13,635 - 1,613,009

Intersegment revenue - 22,473 - - (22,473) -

Interest received - - - 6.440 - 6,440
Total revenue $___ 698,064 313,246 610,537 20,075 (22,473) _ 1,619,449
Interest expense $ - - - 2,957 - 2,957
Depreciation and amortization $ 18,030 32,101 7,293 33,375 (4,886) 85,913
Reporting segment profit or loss $ 118,621 77,059 298,770 20,818 - 515,268

The material reconciling items of the above reportable segment as below:

Total reportable segment revenue after deducting the intersegment revenue was $23,219 thousand and

$22,473 thousand dollars in 2019 and 2018, respectively.
(¢) Enterprise Overall Information

(i)  Product and service information

Revenue from the external customers of the Group was as follows:

Products and service 2019 2018
Bloodline Tube $ 510,030 412,725
Catheters of TPU 406,687 329,361
IV Bag 277,636 254,472
AVF Needle 172,179 156,596
Surgical Tubing 170,540 147,746
Components 109,224 112,390
Catheters of Cardiovascular 100,179 92,886
Others 112,425 106,833
$ 1,858,900 1,613,009

(i) Geographic information

In presenting information on the basis of geography, segment revenue is based on the
geographical location of customers and segment non-current assets are based on the

geographical location of the assets.

Region 2019 2018
Asia $ 846,252 713,908
South America 196,447 196,787
North America 263,842 193,396
Other courtiers 552,359 508,918

$ 1,858,900 1,

613,009
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Non-current assets:

Region
Taiwan

Philippines

(d) Major customers

The Group’s total revenue from segment A:

C company

F company

2019 2018
622,062 616,150
496,558 459,532

1,118,620 1,075,682

2019 2018
173,018 170,378
126,137 125,538
299,155 295,916




